
1

  The Northampton Planning Board
Minutes of Meeting

September 8, 2016, 2016
City of Northampton Hearing Room 18, 212 Main St., Northampton, MA

Members Present: Time

R Chair, Debin Bruce 

R Vice Chair, John Lutz

R Ann DeWitt Brooks

Karla Youngblood

R Mark Sullivan Stepped of f 7:29

Returned 10 PM

R Theresa “Tess” Poe

R Dan Felten, Associate Member

R Alan Verson, Associate Member Stepped off

10:55 PM

Staff:

Planning Director, Wayne Feiden

R Senior Planner, Carolyn Misch

7:00 PM Debin Bruce   opened the public meeting at 7:00 PM with an invitation for public comment.
Craig Weiss 1250 Westhampton Rd asked for review of an ANR.

Bruce informed him of the process for staff review prior to coming to the Board.

7:00 PM  Debin Bruce opened the request for landscape screen modification for 69 Day Avenue 
Site Plan, previously approved by the Board.

Mark Sullivan noted that the issue of screening was never raised before and if they hadn’t had a 
permit, there would be no need for the Board to approve a fence or trees.

The Board discussed plan changes.

Steve Eyles, 48 Sherman Street referenced his letter previously submitted to the Board, which 
stated his concern about the fence being installed instead of vegetation.



2

Gerry White 32 Sherman voiced concern about the lack of trees for a buffer and dissatisfaction 
about the modifications made prior to seeking permission.

Chris Eyles, 48 Sherman requested that no changes to the original plan be made. Trees should be
planted.

Mike Goggins, 69 Day Avenue apologized for not seeking permission prior to modifying the 
plan and described their interest in making the change.

Dan Felten expressed dissatisfaction with plan changes that occurred without requesting it first.

The Board discussed solutions and need for screening of various types.

Ann DeWitt Brooks moved to allow the change to a fence.  The motion was seconded by John 
Lutz.  The motion failed 4-3 (Ann DeWitt Brooks, John Lutz, Alan Verson in favor).

7:30 PM  Debin Bruce opened the continuation of previously unopened hearing for Special 
Permit & Site Plan 8 residential units by New Harmony Properties LLC at 121 Hinckley St, 
Florence, Map ID 23D-149.

Jonathan Wright, applicant, provided detailed overview of the project and goals.

Debin Bruce asked for clarification about by-right lots that could be created.
Wright responded.

Terry Reynolds, engineer, described approval criteria and  the reason for demolition of the 
structures that had been on site.

Charles Roberts, Kuhn Riddle Architects. reviewed architectural context of the neighborhood 
which gave rise to the design of the buildings and the settings.

Jeff Squire, Berkshire Design described landscaping elements and lighting.

John Lutz asked about site grading and changes relative to existing conditions.

Wright described the planned layout/siting relative to grades.

Ann DeWitt Brooks asked about the quantity of grade changes from the front of the lot. ~15’

Debin Bruce noted that the Department of Public Works had reviewed and approved drainage 
plans and a stormwater permit had been issued.

Sara Northrup, 147 Hinckley St, raised concerns about potential lighting through the trees toward
the east and that fixtures might be changed in the future.  She also took issue with the planting 
plan, stormwater plan relative to the subdrains, and long term maintenance of the rain gardens.



3

Joyce Snyder 130 Hinckley Street, stated that  traffic, water, noise light would be issues.  She 
relayed information about existing runoff on Hinckley freezing and puddling in front of the site.  
She suggested that three units was more appropriate.

John Lutz asked why three units?

Snyder stated that fewer is better.

Doug Rosa, 73 Hinckley noted that there was clay on his site and core soil samples should be 
taken to ensure the drainage will work. He objected to the project as being out of character with 
the street because of the number of units.

Jonathan Little, 36 Hinckley Street, indicated that the zoning should be addressed to protect the 
character of neighborhood to ensure there is a single structure per lot and density is consistent 
with the neighborhood.

Lonnie Patenaude, 111 Hinckley, spoke against the increase in traffic, speeding and the total 
number of cars to be on site.

Wright confirmed that there would be a mix of 2 and 3 bedroom units.

Laura Reinhardt, 22 Nonotuck St, read her concerns about wet areas, lighting, landscape screens 
and provision of parking.  She emphasized a desire for the applicant to install Aborviatae Nigra.

Jonna Sciacca, 136 Hinckley St asked the board to require the project to be scaled down.

Mathew Jarrett, 14 Nonotuck Street, spoke against the project raising issues about water, wildlife
impacts and rear garden.

Jean Almanzar, 16 Hinckley St, spoke against the project indicating it was too dense.

Debbie Marten 26 Hinckley St. Spoke in opposition to the project based on comments previous.
Doug Garner 136 Hinckley St asked about snow build up and removal.

Debin Bruce read a letter summary from Mark Jarvis and Richard Guzowski
Alan Verson asked about water discharge onto other properties? He asked about the planting 
plan for the northeast corner and if it could be changed?

Reynolds noted that the soils are poor for infiltration.  The assumption doesn’t include 
infiltration except seasonally with the system designed to discharges as it currently does.  Rain 
gardens will slow the runoff and will result in less runoff afterward.

Wright noted that rain gardens have amended soils with the subdrain creating additional 
reservoir capacity.

Debin Bruce asked where the drains discharge?



4

Reynolds noted drains will drain off site, as the water currently does.

Wright added that they will be using minimal lighting.

Ann DeWitt Brooks asked about snow and visitor parking.
Wright/Reynolds confirmed that snow will need to have to be hauled off site.

Dan Felten suggested this is a bad example of infill and it is out of place.
Debin Bruce suggested a contrary position, that these provide smaller units and the layout is 
superior to the creation of four structures on four distinct lots.

Dan Felten noted in his opinion that the project is not well proportioned and displaces green 
space. 

Alan Verson noted that this a good project and is consistent with the zoning.  He added that no 
one likes new development.

Mark Jarvis, reiterated that it was too much infill for this site.

The Board discussed issues of parking location and number.
Upon motion by Alan Verson and second by Ann DeWitt Brooks the Board voted unanimously 
to close the hearing.

The Board discussed possible conditions and traffic mitigation waiver request.
Upon motion by Alan Verson and second by Ann DeWitt Brooks the board voted (5-1 w/Dan 
Felten opposed) to approve the permit with conditions.

1. At least 30 Days prior to issuance of a building permit, final construction plans shall be sent to the DPW 
for review and sign off for consistency with city specifications. Plans shall include a note that the 
existing water line will be abandoned at the main in accordance with Water Department requirements

2. Prior to any site work, tree protection measures for the trees shown to be saved on site shall be inspected
and approved by the City and in accordance with 350-12.3F A certified arborist shall submit a written
letter to the Building Commissioner, Tree Warden and Office of Planning and Sustainability certifying
that such area has been so protected in accordance with the site plan.

3. Prior to any site work or removal of significant trees, the City’s Tree Warden shall sign off on the
assessment by the applicant’s arborist regarding the health of the significant 40” Sugar maple on the
southwest corner of the site.

4. Prior to the start of construction or issuance of a Building Permit, the applicant must complete a 
Stormwater Management Operation, Inspection, and Maintenance Agreement that defines and ensures 
long term maintenance of the proposed storm water system to the satisfaction of the Department of 
Public Works.

5. Any future lighting changes must comply with zoning.
6. Snow shall not be plowed into the rain gardens.
7. The Sewer Manhole shown on the western property line shall be placed entirely within the private 

property boundary.

10:00 PM  Debin Bruce opened Site Plan 18 new parking spaces by O’Connell Development 
Group, for Michael’s House 71 State St, Northampton, Map ID 31B-310.



5

Andrew Crystal, representing O’Connell Development Group, introduced the project.
John Furman described the site.

Alan Verson asked about screening between the parking lot and houses.

The applicant indicated the issues they addressed relative to drainage open space.

The Board discussed parking requirements and the layout.

David Bruce Sloman 28 Trumbull Rd, stated his opposition to the parking lot and submitted a 
letter and photos to describe the site context.

Gary Ost, 107 State Street, objected to the new  parking
Dorothy Meehan 32 Trumbull Rd stated that the new parking area would ruin the green space.

Debin Bruce asked about the width of sidewalk.

The Board discussed options with the applicant regarding modifications to the layout and 
location of the parking area.

Upon motion by Ann DeWitt Brooks and second by Tess Poe the Board voted unanimously to 
continue the hearing to Sept 22 at 7:30 PM.

Alan Verson stepped off because of a conflict with an abutter for the Glendale Road permit.

10:55 PM  Debin Bruce opened the amendment of Cluster Special Permit by City of 
Northampton, Glendale Rd, Florence, Map Id 41-32.

Wayne Feiden, representing the City, described the plan changes.
Mark Sullivan noted that this project is an improvement over the previously approved  site

Mary Ann LaBarge spoke in favor of the change to four lots and described the council process 
for approval of lots.
Stephen Childs 209 Glendale Road opposed the project highlighting concerns about new 
development on Glendale for  housing and a pv array at the landfill and possible dog park.

Donovan Tiffany, 122 Glendale Road spoke against the creation of lot 1.

Megan McDonough, Habitat For Humanity, spoke about the goal for providing single family 
homes in this area.

Marsha Fellows, 123 Glendale Rd, spoke in favor of the changes but emphasized desire to 
maintain her privacy.

Richard Labardo 74 Glendale spoke against the project changes.



6

Mark Sullivan asked about lot 1 and how it relates to the other lots and the previously approved 
decision.
Wayne Feiden responded.

Upon motion by Ann DeWitt Brooks and second by Mark Sullivan, the Board voted 
unanimously to close the hearing.

Upon motion by Mark Sullivan and second by John Lutz the Board voted unanimously to 
approve the amendment.

Staff presented the proposed performance guarantee covenant for Pecoy.  Upon motion by Tess 
Poe and second by John Lutz the Board voted unanimously to approve the covenant and endorse 
the subdivision plans.

Upon motion by Dan Felten and second by John Lutz the Board voted unanimously to approve 
the minutes of 8-11.
12:05 Adjourn (unanimous motion by Dan Felten and second by Tess Poe )


